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BEAVER CREEK BAPTIST CHURCH . |
1797 - 1947 :

Christ is made the sure foundation
Christ the head and cornerstone
Chosen of the Lord and precious

Binding all the churck in one
- Henry Smart

Beaver Creek Bapiist Chnrch, sitzated in the hills of northwestern Fairfield County, 'was orgamized in 1797. The
original chorch building stood near the headwaters of Beaver Creek; hence the church's name. '

Sometime between 1758 and 1760, Edward Mobley with his six sons emigrated from Maryland o South Carolina
and setded on Poplar Ridge on the east side of Beaver Creek in Fairfield County.  ™us.

Ags the Mobleys came through North Carclina, the caravan was joined by Hans Wagner, a Hollander, and his family
which consisted of kimself and his six daughters.

History records that a house of worship, the Mobley Mecting House, was built by these and ofher carly settlers. In
this house all dencminations worshiped God together. Later, the various denominations withdrew, when they were largerin
number, and built their own separate churches. As a result, within a few miles of Mobley Meeting House, there are Bapiist,
Methodist, Presbyterian, and Universalist Charrches. Itis very probable that the Baptists from that house of worship were
those who founded Beaver Creck Church in 1797,

‘What this original church was like or how long it was used, is notknown. Tn the course of time the membership of
the church moved northward and the church was moved to the present location.

- Records in the Chester County Comrthouse (Book Y, page 447) show that the four acres of land for the ¢hurch were

- bought from Enock Grubbs for the sum of twenty dollars. The deed was recorded in February, 1832, |

Im the cemetery the earliest marker bears the name of Rhodia Colvin,. Who died October 23, 1848. Prom this date
and the date the land was bought, we are led to believe the church was moved to this location about 1835, . "

Mirs. Lizzie Wilkes Wright of Chester attended this church most of her girThood days and she remembemd the
building. Tt was built argely of the inmber that was moved from the old chmch,ochaver Creck. [t stoogl to.the rear and. .

~ south of the present one, and faced the south, having two froat entrances and onaﬁ;gei door. Inside thc bugdmg 'betwccn the
front doors was the pulpit, and one 'entered the church facing the congregation tinless the door on the side was used. Shc
does not remember the gallery but we have records indicating that the Negroes attended services and held membersmp 1n the

church.

There were Auvnt Pattence Melarkin and Uncle Anderson Stmpson and others of whom stonesu‘uf;: €. becn handed
down to preserve their memories. Uncle Anderson was a slave of Mr. John' Slmpson. Itis sald ’he remained a member of
this church as Tong as he lived and attended services regularly, always sitting on the back seat, We;lavc record of one

colored member thwongh 1886. Therefore we presome Uncle Anderson mnst have dzed n 1887

Early Pastors
We know of two men who served as pastors of Beaver Creck before we bave minutes to record. Rev. Eplmam Fant

(Phant) was a minister of the gospel 17 years, and we.are told he preached at Beaver Creek for some years during his
ministry, He died in 1851, so he was probably the fizst pastcr of the first church built on this ground. Ie evidenily died in
the vicinity of Woodward, §.C., as he was buried in a church cemetery near there. Due to heavy rains at the timg of his
death, it was imapossible to get to Beaver Creel with his body for buvial. A grandson from Horda had his remains moved to
this cemetery.

. M. Randelpl-Grant remembers his mother speaking of Rev. Johm Only who preachcd at Beaver Creck. She often
guoted to him one of Rev. Only's favorite illustrations: "If you want to raise chickens, you have to save the eggs.”

. Elder 1. D. Fant
' 'Ihe first record we have in our church minutes was dated “Saturday before the ﬁrst Sabbath April 1863." Uptil
years later, all church conferences were held on Saturdays. And all preachers, upsio Mr. Mﬁhon, were addressed in the
church minutes as Elders. So we speak of them as Elders in this skeich.

At that time Flder J. D. Fant, an wacle of the late My, C. E. Fant, was pastor and James Jlliott Robinson, father of
the late Mis. Victoria Robinson Coleman, was church cletk. Tn November 1863, Mr. Robmson was at Fort Sumter,
Charleston. Becoming ill, he was sent home on furlongh. After recouperating he was planming to retorn. 1o his post of dnty.

- On Sunday before he planned to leave, he and his family walked from their home %o attend services at Beaver Creek in the
morming. That afternoon he took a congestive chill and died. A page to his memory is inscribed in the minutes book of that
period. Mr Linds@nEsfes, father of the late Mrs. Molhie Estes:Dntham, was then elected to serve as, clmrch clerk and served

it a most efﬁment L way for a mumber of years.
Elder G. W. Phillips, who was the late father of Mes. Lula Phillips Lee of Chester supphed al Beaver Creck a



musaber of times while Elder Fant was pastor.
- During Elder Fant's pastorate, in December 1864 T Crasby reqwsted the church to grant bim the privilege of
exborting and beseeching sinners to God, which was granted.

The church roll at that time included 152 whites (64 males and 128 xsmales) and 128 Negroes {42 males and 78
females)) They were listed as white males and white females, black males and black females.

We gather from the church minutes that deacons at that time were: LA, C. Estes, L. B. Lee, (great grapdfather of
ihe late Mrs. S. M. Douglas), J. Neaves (father of the late Mirs. Tabby Meaves Dye), John Simpson (grandfather of N. H.
StonesSr.), Stephen Crosby (father of the late Mis. David P. Crosby).

A page in the painutes book is inscribed to Mr. Crosby's memory and we quote, “meckness, humility and
bemevolence were prominent traits of bis Christian character.” These men were earnest loyal workers in the affairs of this
church. Elder Fant was in failing hezlth and resigned September 1865. On Sundays when he was not able to preach "Bro. J.
Neavens read a chapter of the scriptrwe and led the singing of a hymn, and Bro. J. B. Lee prayed."

Eider Willizen Hiflard Hartia

The day Flder Fant's resignation was accepied by the church, Elder George Washington Pickett, who was preaching
at Woodvard Baptist Church was called. For some reason Elder Pickeit did not accept the call, and Elder William Hitliard*
Hariin was extended the call i sexrve as pastor for one year. He seems to have Ied his people in the straight and namow path.
In.a conference meeting presided over by Elder Hertin "a charge was preferred against Bro. Robert Coleman for dancing. -
Bro. J. Neavens was appoinied to cite him to attend the next conference meeting " At the same time 4 resolution was passed
"that the church disapprove of ‘publick’ plays and membership to be notified thereof." At different times others were charged
with misconduct, drunkenness, etc. Elder Hartin was the father of Mys. Sara Hartin Clark, of Winnsboro. For many years he
" filled the pulpits of several Fairfield and Rickland County Churches. s last years were spent on bis farm near Ridgeway.

' Elder George Washington Pickelt

In September 1866 Elder Geo. Washington Pickett was agam called to Beaver Creek. This time he accepted and”
"the church pledged him 4 4 anmual sa]az’y of $150.00 in cmrency.” His acceptance of this call umted Beaver Creek, Cool
. Branch and Woodward chiirches inio one field

M. Tyre Lee, grandfather of the late Mis. §. M. Dougias, becarae church clerk at ﬂ]la time and served eight years
O the first Sunday in June 1870, Mose C. Stone and David P: Crosby were ordained deacons. M. Stone became one of the
strong pillars of hlS church, serving faithfolly as deacon until his death in 1921, and was Sunday School supenntendent for

3@ years
C " He'married Miss Amanda Timms and was the father of Mis. Blla Conmingham, who was a member of this chiarch
for many years, and lived in Chester.

We know of one man'lage performed by Elder Pickett while here - that of the late Mr. and Mrs. Jack F. Stone,
paremls ofdN. i Stone Sr." Mrs. Stone was Miss Mattie Sunpson_

While serving this church Elder Pickeit was moderator of the Bethel Baptist Association to which Beaver Creck,
Woodward and Cool Branch churches belonged wntil 1878, Bethel Association mioutes of 1868 closed with ¥ on motion,
after prayer by the Rev. J. C. Furman, D. D., the association adjourn, to meet with Beaver Creek church, 15 miles sonthof
Chesterville, 11 o'clock Friday before the fourth Sunday in September 1869. Signed, G. W. Pickett, Moderator.”

‘ ' Eider H. C. Hinton
Elder H. C. Hinton was ihé next pastor. He was born in Wake County, N. C., and was graduated at Wake Forest
College. He came to Beaver Creek Baptist Church, December 1872, After serving four years he was called to Brushy Fork
" Baptist Church, and for many years he preached in various churches in the Chester Association. He died November 11,

1903, and is buried in Evergreen cemetery at Chester.
‘While he preached at Beaver Creek’ the church bégin holding services twice a month - on the first apd third Sundays

- a castors that continued for many years, except for a few months at the beginningaf the year 1880, when "it was
unamimously decided, owing to the stringency of the times, to bave preaching once a mon|

Flder Tillman R. Gaines, pa¥tor of Woodward Baptist Church, and Elder A. P. Pugh, a young student whom Elder
Gaines was assisting in educating, supplied here at different times during Hinton's pastorate. 'Elder Caines was the father of
T R Games of Chester. For a number of years he served n the Baptist Courier staff as editor.

Tt was during August:1874, that Bx. C. C. Estes was made church clerk. From his minutes of July 1878 we quote "It
was ascertained that the constitation of the church has been lost, and a commitiee consisting of 1. D. Mahon, I:: A. C. Estes,
- Mose Store, and e @msby were appointed to draw up a new constitution. It was also ascertained that the church was
without by-laws, where on a commﬂtee consisting of C. C. Estes, John Sxmpson and W5 Dutham were msu'ucted to frame

a code of by-laws."

R Kev. john D. Mahone :
The Rev. John D. Mahone from near Winmsboro, {the first pastor to be addressed in the minutes as Revcrcnd) was
called as 2 supply one year before Elder Hinton's resignation. After that in 1877, he was given a cali for an indefinite time.



Rev. Mahon was a graduaie of Forman University. He marmied MIS Rebecca Shedd Durhem of Ridgeway. They
and their fine family seem to bave bmught ew interest and enthysiasm into the ¢ church and commugity. For a short time
they lived in the Johmn Weir house on Cool Branch Road, and later the old Boarda:w House of the Crosbyville Institute, about
one mile sowth of this church, was nsed for the parsonage.

On the first Sunday in May 1880, the chmrch fook a special collection o send Rev. Makon to Lowsville, Ky.. io
attend the Sonthern Baptist Conventicn. He mnst have come back from that convention full of zeal and spirit, for we find on
the first Sunday in July, the church met in conference to discuss which would be better, to build a new house of worskip or

repair the old.one. 5

Rev. Mahone was appoinfed a commitize of one to sohicit contributions. A month Jater, the first Sonday in August
he reported that enongh morey had been subsczibed to build a new house. The building cormmitiee composed of L. A.C.
Estes, Mose C. Stene and David P. Crosby, was appointed to buy lumber and employ workmen to build the house. It was

 also agreed that a correct record of all pames and amount subscribed be recorded in the church book. The list has been well
nreserved. The contract for labor and building was given to J. H. Crosby for $349%:50. The building, including Iabor, fumber,
hardware, roofing, etc., was erected ata total cost of $818.20, leaving a balance of $14.80 in the building fund.

, . 'The cost scems very low compared with prices today. Logs were given by people of the comurunity and much of
the tumber was sawed at David Crosby's sawmill by Sam Wright, 2 man whose memory is held in high regard by the people
of this commmnpity, and who, during his active life, supervised the d:i.ggmg of most of the graves in the cemetery. Much of
the Jumber inside the building was hand dressed. J. Monroe Grant estimated the namber of shingies it would take to cover
the honse. His family still has this estimate in its posession. The pillars of the house were built by B. F. Faley, father of
Tom C. Faley. Mr. Tom, as a boy of eight or nine years, cairied water from the branch-at the foot of the hill to mix mostar.

In those days lime came in big lumps in barrels and had to be dissolved. Mr. Tom said "it took a ot of water to melt that
Time.”

The building tad two eﬁtranc.,s on thc fmnt, makmg two aisles, There were long seats between the aisles and short

_ seats on each end. There were no rooms on the rear and no baplistry, For many years the church maiutained a pool and

. dressing room at Coleman's Spring approximately a mile north of the church.

» — : Sunday, July 1881, one year after the
building was first discussed, Rev. Makon
vreached the dedicatory sermon in the new
building. The protracted meeting was heid that

year, beginning the first Suaday in August. A

young sindent from the seminary, Rev. W. A

Williamus, assmteei Rev: Mahon.

) 'ﬂte churchexpﬂncnced a great revival.
The followmg were baptised: . Misses Florence
Chapman, Lily. Estes, Minuie Castles, Minnie
Haisell, Mys. Bethency Woodward, J. B Tee,
Butder Weir, Thomas Wix, Edward Chapman,

Beaver Creck accepied an invitation from

Mizpah Presbyterian church to hold services

there while the church was nader construction.

R s FPhoto by Nichols Studio "After tising the nevw building for two years,
the congregation painted it white, trimmed in red. In 1883, Rev. Mahon accepted for the chwech a bﬂgantxful»mlver

- - communion set presented by the ladies of the church.

: Three years later, 1886, pew seats were made for the church, the ones in use today "Wilson Gft)son and Edward
Chapman hauvled the lumber from Blackstock to make the seats. The roads were in bad condition and on one trip their .

+ wagon stalled on the McKeown hill, going up from the cieek toward Beﬁﬂchem church. Anothér wagon came along and the

driver hitched his team to the rea: of fhe loaded wagon anid pufied it back down hill. Then he told M. Gibson and Mr.

Chapman, "y it agam boys, and see if you can maske a better drive ﬂ]IS time.” The seats were made on the gmlmds and put

mﬂ:e_c]mrchby i

i

vix: ;.ark, g;randfather of the Tate FokntWeEwWes
Sooa the need for a rusical instrument was felt, yet some conﬁ'idered a musical mtrument inthe chu;ch a sacrilege.
In September 1891, a committee was appointed topinChase an organ: i) Damd P:Crosby, I%R Chapman. and ID. T. Weir. The
- first organists were Miss Ermie Mabon, danghter oi‘&Rev Mahon, now Mrs T. W. Smith, and Miss Maggie Robmson,
daughter of James Elficit Robinson, and who later married Farlton E. Clatk, son of John. Clark.” :
Tn August 1887, Dr. C. C. Estes died, and Wi-S: Dugham, a stép-son of Rev. Mahon, wag appomtedhls succesmr as
chureh clerk. Although he died in early life, Dr. Fstes had lived a full Iife in service t¢ his Lord and te humatity.
While Rev. Mahon was here the first wedding in this church took place. Prof. David Bisshee 4’
Favcette were martied one Sunday just after preaching services. Prof. Busbee was pnnmpai of Cmsbyvi]le ]’.nsutute and

Miss Faucette was the music teacher. .
M. Jake R. Coleman and Miss Emma C@claem]l»of Alabama, were also mamed in the church by Rcv Mahon.

Theirs was a quiet church wedding with only a few fricnds present. While visiting her uncle, V. B. Wright, grandfather of




Hﬂmyaanht, she met and marmed M. Coleman. (The exact dates of these weddings are not known.)

R ‘Mrs. Makon disd in 1885, and is buried beside this church, Rev. Makion resigred in 1892, and moved to Union.
Whilé there he married Miss Gemina mebv In 18595 he was again cailed w Beaver Creek, and served as pastor for  year
going back and fortl from Chinton, wheré he was Hving at that tims.

Rew . A, Swindler

During the pericd betwesn Rev. Makon's two pastorates at Beaver Creek, D. A. Swindler filied the plﬂp!.t ¥ also
preachéd at Woodward church. Rev. Swindler came from Maybington Baptist Chireh. Being 2 young man with a great
personality, as well as ferver and devotion for his Lord's work, he endeared himself not only to his congregation, but 1o the
commumity. He boarded in the vicinity until he married Miss Eugenia Lee of Whitmire.

When he retumed with his bride they were met at the railroad siation (Lccds} by a number of young people who
escorted them to the home of Mt. and Mis. Mose . Stofie where a reception was beld for them that evening. Rev. and Mrs.
Swindier kept house for a few months in the Crosbyvule schoolhouse. Shortly afte‘ ‘they set up bouscheeping the chmch
gave thein a surprise pounding.

Mis. J. F. Stofie, whose mardage has aIready been meritioned, was being driven by her son, John Simpson Stone, to
the Swindier' s for the pound.n,g when they met Rev. Swindler onl ‘the road. After exchanging sahutations, the preacher asked,
"Where are youi beaded for? To which Mr. Stone replied, "to the poor house," and drove on much to the embarrassment of

iz mother. After two years of semoe Rev. Swindler re51gned and west to Louisville, Ky., to complete his eduction,

Rev. A. M. Plitman
Rev. A, M. Pitiman, who was Eving at Blackstock and had been pastor of Blaclsotck Baptist Church for some years,

was called to serve Beaver Creek also. Althongh Rev. Pistman's pastorate was not long, 1€ 'was beloved and held in highest
_ esteem by the congregation. While here he officiated at the wedding of MingBaisyiGitkby and Mr. John'S:3toire. They

were marnzied at the home 'of the bride's parents, ¥ and Mrs: Bavid B Crosf-)y, Sunday thoming, Jamuary Tih, 1894, just

before the preaching hour. They and all the wedding party attended services and then went back to her home for the

reception afierward. Rev. Pittman resigned in December 1894, and then Rev. Mahon was given his second call to Beaver

Crecl. - .

. Rew Edward A McDoweEl

It was during Rev. Edward A. McDowell's minisiry that the church heid her Centenmial celcbranon. Rev.
McDowsll borrowed the eaﬂy minutes of the church to help prepare his historical sketch for that occasion, and fa:led 0.
retirn them. Not having 2 copy of bis sketch, or the minmies, has left GSfwithoit # recorded history. -~ 7

Rev. McDowell maried Miss Fva Scott; daughter of the Iate Dr. Scott, prominent phymcum of Fau:ﬁeld County
She was a vocalist and musician and used her tafent to enrich the church services.

Rev. McDowell never lived in the commmuity, but came 1o pay pastoml visiis and to hold semces first from
Strothers; and later from Monticello. Coming in 1896, he réndered faithful service for five years, resigning in 1901 io take -
up work elsewhere. He preached 10 some of the larges: congregations ever assembled at Beaver Creek for preachmg
services. This section at that tmce was mzckly popﬁlated and ople came from miles aréund.

: Tt was Rev. McDowell who instigated ﬁle
4 building of a baptistry in the church. He was the .ﬁrst
g to administer baptismal rites in the haptistry and
Iﬁﬂss‘#ﬂumceiRobeﬂw Qs +Tayler), Missdeila
1 Weir), Miss Mary Crosby (Mrs. I
L. Colims) Mr: N. H. Stone, Sz, probably Hor:John
& M-Wise, and others, fhirteen in all, were the first to

'4

‘ Mr. Tiliman R. Gaines held a singing
school at Hopewell ARP. church in 1898.
Widespread interest was taken in the school. Beaver
Creek delegated M Ranidolt¥ Gt and MrC:E.
Eemt to go to Hopewell and engage Mi. Matthews to
holda smgma g school here. The school was held i i
Scptember of that year, with old and young
attendmg It was so great a success that Mr.
Maitthew's was engaged to return the next summer.
The tesults of these singing schools were énjoyed for
years in the song service of this church. Mr. Grant

still Bds'ome of the book$ used in the school.
The church began fo see the disadvantgage of not havmg a home for the pastor to live in the community, Several
thnes a commttee had been appomasd o 100&. mw "the advxsabﬁzty cf bmidmv a paxsonage It was elt!z,er not adw.sabk t0

WaFin A



build or the commnittee would fail to report. Under Rev. MeDowell's leadership the movement was started again.

I 1894 the church came in possession of what we know ag the "Parsonage jand.” The land belonged to Mr. John
Dye, 2 great nncle of MawW.'C Taylor. Some years before he'had died, wilting the land to his wife, Mis. Tabby Neaves
Dye, for her life time, and after it was 1o be the property of Beaver Creek Church. Mrs. By@ died in 1894, and the church
appointed WL Banks to Ipok after and rent out the property. This gift has been a help to the chirrch financially in that the
land was rented ot for years, and a good bt of timber and pulpwood has been sold from it, the proceeds bcmg used in
verious church expenses. It has also fomished a home for the pastors ‘of the church.

Having land of its own on which to build, the church decided to build a parsonage. We do not know th composed
the buildisg commities, but we have been told two Negroes, Henry: ‘Hickenbottont and Bem:;ﬂMc‘Lm]én builtit Itwas.
completed and ready for oconpancy in 1901, but Rev. McDowell left just before it was ﬁmshed '

On the zfterncon of December 5, 1899, Mr.-Sani Stone and Niiss Robﬁrta Clowiiey were mamcd in Beaver Creek:.

. byRev. McDowell. Oxiya f'ew Friends and relatives were present. , :

Rev. Eilis Dulzney Wells .

, Rev. and Mis. E.D. Wells, who came here from Georgetown in 1901, were the first to hve in the paronage. Rev
Wells was a graduate of Wake Forest. Beaver Creek and Cool Branch hecame associated into one field at that time and Reyv.
Wells served twenty-one years. Itis said that he officiated at more weddings than any other pastor Beaver Creek had. He
and Mis. Wells were always fond of yonng pecple.

Mrs. Wells had a hobby of taking and developing pictures. Many of her pictures are found in homes arcund here.
Rev. Wells enjoyed fishing and hunting.
_ While he was pastor the second organ was bought for the church. "Mrs. Simp Stone,; Mvssm&*@iam@iﬁﬂbbm Mes:Ross

Tarham, Mrs. N. H. Stone, Mass Eva: Pusham: (Wirs. Barl-Steadmidn), and others served as orgamists. |

Tn the whater of 1901-2, Mr. fvd. Eoistesfell and fractumed his lip. He never fully recovered and died in March
1902,

In 1011 MerWilliam H. Basks, deacon and treasurer of the church for a munber of years, died. In December 1917,
Mr. W, 8. Durham, churck clerk and deacon for 30 years, died. For years he was fweasurer of the Chester Baptist
Association. o .

M John W Weir succeeded Mr. Durharh as churck clerk. Mr. Weir and Mg SamvHef&E‘z“ﬁanﬁé* were elocted
deacons while Rev. Wells was here. o

In February 1921, Mirs. Wells died and was buried in the cemetery of the church. :

Mrs. Wells and Mis. Ida Stiltey of Palisade, Colorado, were devoted friends and while in shéool madc a solemn
pledge to each other, if in Jater life, either of them married aad one died, and the other was not marriedtor was &  widow, that
one would marry the living husband and take care of him. They never saw each other after leaving school but kept up
corrcspondence Me. Stdley died some years before Mrs. Wells died. In one of her last letters to Mrs Siﬂley Mis. Wells
reminded her of their promise to take care of "The Boy," as she called Mr. Wells. After Mrs. Wells’ death Mis. Si:ﬂey wrote
Mr. Wells and enclosed that part of Mrs. Wells' letter. After a year Rev. Wells resigned and went to Palisade where he
married Mrs. Stilley. Fe died there February 12, 1940, and kis body was brought to Beaver Creek for burial beside the first
Mrs Wells, who was Miss Grace Bmw:usen of Toledo, Ohio. , S S

Rev. John S, Harris
The year that Rev. Wells remgned the Rev. J. 8. Herris was called. He wasa South Carolinian but was helding a. .
pastorate in Mason City, Nebraska, at that time. His coming joined Beaver Creek, Blackstock, Cool Branch and Woodward

churches Into one ficld.
Mes: Harris was Miss Bertha Sanders of MicCormick. Their three children: Elizabeth, born mNebraska, John S Jr

and Bertha, born during his minisiry at Beaver Creek.

- Rev. and Mrs, Hards were zealous workers and 2 number of new members were added to the church roil lmde:f iheir
jcadership. The Sunday School took on new life, and the largest attendance of Sunday School the church has ever tecorded
- was reached. The Woman's Missionary Society was reorganized with Mrs. N. IL Stone, president, and is still serving, The
regular monthly program was first used with meetings in the homes. A Baptist Young Peoples Union was orgamzci Wﬂh
Mrs. C. M. Adams (Now Mrs. Tennant), the first president A Sunbeam Band was orgenized and Mrs Dw]?ﬁ Crosby (now
Mrs. Heath), was leader. She was a-person fitted for that particnlar work, and many of us look back with fond memoties of
our days in the Sunbearm Bapd under her capable leadership,. ! o

In 1924 the chm‘ch building was remodeled as it stands today The fromt entrance was chanue mm two to.one
entrance, and a cement porch was added. The inside wa]ls{warc plastered, metal ceiling put p, the ¢ ft buiit and the
windows fixed. Mrs. Nora Cornwell gave the paint and.the floor was painted. A mew carpet was put “Chester
Machine and Lummber Company was given the \,Gn‘?acg fo; remodeling, but o the Tate Mis. Damy Cros] the chuﬁ'ch is
- indebted for her tireless efforts in planming and carrying out the remodeling. M. Claud Crosby, at that time president of
Chester Machine and Lumber Company, gave the pulplt stand n memory of his parems the late Mr. and Mrs. Da,md P

Crosby.
After the Iemodeunw cf' the, charch a

> was bonght. For some tlmc pxano am:'l organ were used mn serwces Mrs.



. P. Crosby paymg thet pano and Mrs. Harris the
organ. {The crgan bas in recent years been used by
Bilackstock Baptist Church.)
The first Sunday in October 1925, an

election of deacons tock place as follows: C. E.
Fant, 5. H Banks I.W. Weir, {who were already
serving) and H. J. Heair, T. R. Varnadore, and Harvey
} Weir. Miss Maude Durham was made chusch clerk
and still serves in that capacity.

" “While Rev. Hartis was here the individual
' commumon st was bought and used.
: Bétause of failing health Mr. Harris
3 resigned in 1927, and moved his family to
- McCormick, where be died a few montiis later. In
the Associational mimztes of 1927 a page is mscnbed
to his memory.

Fhoto ‘by-Niehois' Studz'a

Rev. A. C. Odom
Rev. A. C. Odom and his family moved into the parsonage the year Mr. Harris left Ihey came from Saluda S.C.,
and after serving two years moved to Landrum. It was with regret that the church gave up Mr. Odom and his fine family.
Edifh, Francis and Elia May took actwe parts in the B. Y. P. U., and Frank was a Suobeam. Another daughter, Ruth, was
stodying in New York

Rev. D. Homer Owings
Foliowmg the Rev. Odom, Rev. and Mis. 2. E. Owings from Dovesville, in Darlington County, took up the Work
here, Juiy 1929 Rev. Owings had for a number of years been a missionary to China. Affer his return to the States, while
preachmg Deat Spartanburg, he mamed Miss Alma Sandifer of Bamberg, who was teaching school there.

“" Rev. and Mrs. Owings were an inspiration to their churches. Mrs. megs tavgght the Ladies' Sunday School class
and she started 2 movement to tam the dressing rooms on the rear into Sunday | School rooms. She organizeda’Y. W. A, She
died in 1934, and was buried in the cemetery at her home church in Bamberg Coumty

" A few months later Mr. Owings went to Florida to live. Some yeass | latcr he retumed to Bamberg and mamcd Miss
Nettie Sandifer, sister of the first Mirs. Owings.

Rev. J. Ned Taylor supplied as pastor for a fcw months and then went to Winston-S alem, N.C., 10 become assistant

" pastor of a Baptist Chwrch there.

Rev. George Washingion Gurley
'Rev.G.W. Guzley, who was serving churches in Edgeficld and Greenwood Couniies, accepted a call bere, April -

1936. He and Mrs. Gurley did a good work in the young people's organization and the Sunday School. Mrs, Garley taught
gthe Young People's class and Mr. Gurley the Bible class. They re-organized the B. Y. P. U., with Miss Maitie Stone being
made the director of the organization. During their stay here the church eniertained the Sunday School Convention, the

- Chester Assoma&on, and the W. M. U., Chester Association. Approximately 25 members were added to the church. Their

* daunghter, erglma, now Mrs. W. R. Funderburk, of Greenwood, a high school student, was pianist for the church. Mr.
Gurley was really a pastor. While they were here eleciricity was installed in the church and parsonage. The Gudeys gave up
their work in June 1941, and went to Callison, S.C.

Rev, Jaimes F. Moseley
“In August 1941, the Rev. James. F. Moselcy was called to Beaver Creek, Cool Branch and Blackstock churches.
7 Mirs. Moséley was Miss Dolly Stonc,;«;, daughter of aBapﬁst minister. Their family copsisted of two danghters Amme and
' 'Carol Beth, and two sons, Jimmy and Sherry. Mr. and Mis. Moseley were the youngest couple to octnpy ‘the parsonage.
. The church work was reergamzed and a new system of finance was adopted which put the church on a cash basis
and it proved successful. For the first time in the history of the church services were held every Sunday, and is coniinuing.
New teachers were elected in the Sunday School amid Miss Mattie Stone made superintendent. Mrs. Moseley taught
the Adilt class and was pianist. One Sunday after atiending her class, Mr. N. FL. Stone told her, "Look, here, you are as good
" as a preacher. When your hmsband can't come to preach, tell fim to send you" '
‘ M. J. H. Hair moved to Woodward church and Mr. T. R. Vamadore, who was serving as deacon and church
treasurer, resigned leaving two vacancies for deacons CM Banks and J. Simp Taylor were elected as deacons and John W.
' Weir became church treasarer.
M. Taylor died in 1944, Later his brother, Walker C. Taylos, was elected to fill the vacancy.
The three churches sent the Rev, Moseley to San Antonio, Texas, to the Southern Baptist Convention in Niay 1942.
After four years of service in this field Rev. Moseley resigned and accepted work at Fiint Hill Baptist Church near



.. Fort Mk
An electric water system was pat in the parsonage after the Moseieys came. The commumon alass\holders on the
church pews were made end given by W. 5. Durham, grandson of the Mis. W. §. Durham' mentom:d above and Miss

_ Flogide Mham

- Mias. Catherine Roberts Mirs. Mollie Est::s Durham and Mas. Victoria Re%:msda Célsman, Mj; i ént'served as deacon for
over 50 years and gerved as supermmndent of Smday School for as many yea:s Due to it ilealtk 1\(&3 Rﬁberts was noi able

Beaver Creek W. M. 5. They joined thc cherch eardy in life and were baptised the same day. f[;,brough h.fe theirs was a warm
wnbroken frendship. All four of these had reached their four score years and more, and theif C}msnan mﬂuence CORHOUES

in our church. _ ‘
, bt R LTS st
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Rev. Henry Miller Hodgens
Rev. and Mrs. H. M. Hodgens came to us from Townsville, in December 1245. The weather and Toads were a
- hindrance to Rev. Hodgens in getting acquainted with his new field before spnn But when he did get started ke covered
ground. . Since his coming all three churches have been painted. The parsonagé has been painted and remodeled i some
extent - the long porch on the front taken off and the stoop added. Miss Floride Durbam bad an tnderpinning put around the
north side of the church, in memory of her mother, Mrs. Mollie Estes Durham,
The building improvements comnrittee serving was Miss Floride Durham, W. C. Taylor and Mack Henry Banks.
~ There have been two church weddings since Rev. Hodgens came: Miss Eloise Weir and Victor Blanks, married
Satarday evening, Fune 22, 1946; Miss June Hodgens and Sgt. Bryant Chapman, marvied at goon, May 15, 1947.
Rev. Hodgens held his own protracted meeting last year and gave the expense of a visiting minister to the a
- improvement fund of the church. Several have been added to the membership and all finangial apporuonments kave been
- met Rev. Hodgens taught the adult Sunday School class and Mrs. Hodgens, besides teaching Sunday School, was active in
all phases of the church work,
" Miss Mary Alice Banks served as pianist until she cntered Winthrop College, then her sister, Mss NetieLee
Banks, began to render the service.
In July 1946, Lestie B. Weir and Jake F. Stone were elected deacons. Mrs. Mary Beam, the oldest member Of
Beaver Creek died 1 1945,
In December the church lost 2 zost ardent worker i the death of John W. Weir. Iiis son, 7. D. Weir, has been
elected hls SUCCEsSOr as deacon and treasurer of the chmirch.

' ‘ Women's Work
The minutes of 1883 record in the Digest of Letters from Beaver Creek that a Mary Harlem Mission Society had
been orgamized. We know nothing of this organization or its officers.
In 1889 a Woman's Missionary Society was orgambcd with Mrs. Davxd P. Crosby, president, and Ms. Viciori R

Coleman, secretary.

As far a8 we are able to leamn the f oLomng ladies have served as president of the W. M. U. in the order glven. Mrs!
David P. Crosby, 1889-1895; Miss Mary Jane Weir, 1895-98; Miss Ella Stone (Mrs. Cuzningham), 1898-1900; Miss Clara
Chapman (Mrs. Agnew), 1900-03; Mrs. W. H. Banks, 1503-04; Miss Ella Stone, 1504-7; Mirs. V. R, Coleman, 2-1922% Mas.

N. H. Stone, Sr., 1922-present (1947).
' The Willing Workers Society was reportcd in the minutes of 1851. While active the Society bought the fn:st szle

for the church.
- Tune 13, 1909, Mrs. John 8. Stone organized a young peoples society under the name of Willing Workers. They
had for ﬂ1e3x goal that of enclosing the cemetery, but after a year, it dropped out. Funds ralsed before being dropped are

$55.70.
Different organizations among the young people and chﬂdren are Y. W. A, G. A, R A, and Sunbeams; Mrs
Leskie B. Weir is leader of the only society, the G. A.
' The following ladies served as presidents of the B. Y. P. U.: Mrs. C. M. Adams (Mis. Termant); Miss Leila
Varmadore, Miss Sara Banks, Miss Mattie Store, and Mrs. Johm S‘ Stone Jr.

Sunday Schoo}
In May 1869, during the pastorate of Rev. Pickett, the minutes record Sunday School being held near Halsellville
Post Office, which was Chapman's Store, where M. Lestic B. Weir now 1ives. We have been told that the building in which
Sunday School was held stood somewhere between the Grant home and Mrs. Ross Durham’s. J.B. Lee, deacon at the time,
or Micholas Colvin, were supcnntandcnt of the Sumday Schoo! Both names are remembered m cofimection with the Sunday

School.
Dwring Rev. Mahon's pastoraie Sunday School was perhaps beld in the church for the first time. The records show



the followingserved as supmntendent' J. B M&h@, Mose . SE{me C E. Fant, W. 8. Baﬂks N. H. Stoze, SI S H:'Banks,
T. R. Vamadore, and Mess Mattie Stone.

Anofher son of Beaver Créek, M. Thomas C. Faley was Ecensed to preach in 1901 by the Board of Ministezial
Education of Scuth Carolina Baptist State Convention in Greezmﬁe 5. C. Hﬁ joined Beaver Creek while Rev. Swindler was

pastor and was baptised at Coleman's Spring.

‘ M. Faley attended Furiman University and also Shenasndoan College i n Virginia. He smd.s.ed music and voice, and
during his college life he sang in the choir of the various churches.

Taking vp evangelistic work hie preached and divected the mmsic for revivals at 2 number of churches throughout
South Carolina, Georgla and Virginia. Quite often he assisted other evangelists by directing the music, one of them being
the noted Dr. N. W. Tracy of Boston, Massachusetis, who held a five weeks' tent meeting in Columbla, 5.C., 011 the groomd
wherse the post office now stands. He sang in the State Chautauqua of Louistana, where the well kuoWn evangehsts Sam
Jones and DeWitt Talmadge were important lectarers, and he was in a series of meélings in Virglma with Dr. Brodies, of
Louisville, Keatucky, who was a famons evangelist of the Christian Church. He served as assistant pastor of Southside
Baptist Church in Columbia, 8.C., and alsc of Second Baptist Chimch of that city. On several occasions he filled the pH}pit at
his home church.

Some time during this work he edited 2 hymn book, "Revival Songs." No doabt many who read this ardcle wnil
remember that liffie book of soul-gtirring hymins.

Mr. Faley married Miss Margaret Shannon. They and their fie family lived on Coiumbia Road, about five miles
from Chester.

Part in Chester Baplist Association
Beaver Creek was active in organizing the Chester Baptist Associaticn in 1878, Mr. Nicky Celvin and Mr. Monioce
Grant were the representatives at the organization. The third annnal meeting of the association was held at Beaver Creek.
At that time delegates came from ail over the Association and were assigned to homes of the church for night -
lodging. Dinner was served on the church ground.

The following answered the call to service for their conntry in World WarI: Charlie Mack Banks, Robert.S. Barks, .

John J. Clark, J. Efbert Robetts, S. Simp Taylor, Waiker C. Taylor, Sr., Leslie B. Weir. Tn World War II, Mary Elizabeth
Weir(Mrs. W. W, Rogers Redding; Cakf., Charles C. Adams, Mack Henry Banks, Wallace Bam:s Wﬂham Banks Charlie
Stone, N, H "Stone, Jr. Jake Stone, W. C. Taylor, Jr., J. D. Weir, Walter Widener. =

There have been four ministers of the Gospel Mr. J. H Crosby was hcensedm December 1864. He s&pphed
several Sundays at Beaver Creek during his ministerial years.

Mir. J. D. Crosby was licensed in the 1860°s. He went West to preach. The W M.S. ladies made a quilt and
embroidered their name on the block which she made. This quilt was given to the Rev. Crosby as a love gift, 1o take with
him.

Mr. Belton P. Estes was hicensed on the third Sunday in July 1884, at Beaver Creek. He married Miss Efta Walbns
from Honea Path.

Mr. Hartwell R. Chapman, who attended Wake Forest College and Furman Umversxty was ordained at Brushy
Fork Baptist Church with the Rev. L. C. Hinton, a former pastor, officiafing. He went to Oklakoma where he was president
of a college. He was twice married, first to MSS Palmer of Bullogk's Creek and second, to Miss Ficklin Blackville. The

Rev. Chapman died in Aiken.
' This church has furnished two representatives of the medical profession and one lawyer.

Dr. C. C. Estes has already been mentioned in this history; Dr. John F. Coleman has practiced medicine for 45 years
and is still active in his profession at Smoaks, S.C. ; Hon. John M. Wise practiced law in Chester and represented Chester
County in the State Senate for a number of years.

We mention one of the many businessmen who has gone out from Beaver Creek: Mr. David P. Crosby, whose
natne appears on almost every committee of which we have record from 1870, when he was made deacon, umtil he moved
with his family to Chester in 1896,and joined Chester First Baptist Church. In Chester he became affiliated with Spratt
Lamber Company. After some years e bought the establishment and changed the name to Chester Machine and Lumber
- Company. He married Miss Fanny Crosby, who was the first president of Beaver Creek Woman's Missmnary ‘Society. Mr.

Crosby was a man whose bysiness incladed time and means for the Kingdom. He was the founder of Crosbyville Tustitte, 2
schocl of higher education that was received in the common schools of that time. He not only built the three-room school
honse, but also a three-story boarding honse to be used as a dormitory for stedents who lived too far away to come to school
from their homes each day.

There are many others whom we would like to mention in this history who labored faithfully and well in this
church, and have meant so much to the world.

Although it is impossible to mention all of them here, those who have passed on, and those who are still glwng their
best yet we trust that this church will stand throughout the ages as a monument fo the men and women who have made it

possible.



EISTORY OF BEAVER CREEK BAPTIST CHURCEH 1947 - 1997

The Reverend Henry Miller Hodgens was pastor of Beaver Creek Church when it observed its Sesquicentennial on
September 21, 1947, He leftin 1948 and ii&e Rev. I Yited Bmgha:m was called as pastor. He served less than a year. He
resigned to accept an opportunity to atiend a language school in preparation o become a forelgn missionary. Durmp g hig

pastorate a cyclone fence was built aronnd the cemetery.
The Reverend A. L. Willis was called to Beaver Creek m 1949 and served until 1957.

Duting this time many #mprovements were made to the church building. Thres Sunday School rooms and 2 social
hatl were added onto the left side of the church. A subﬂoar was placed in the anditorinm, aud gas heaters were instalied to
replace two poi-bellied stoves in the samctuary.

In 1957, Cool Branch Church withdrew from the field, leaving Beaver Creck and ‘Blackstock. The Beaver Creek

patsonage Was completely remodeled justin tme for anew pastor the Reverend W. D. Steppe, to oceupy it in July, 1957.
o Reverend Steppe served Beaver Creek for

- M years. Dsing his tenure, the church building

‘@ nnderwent several improvements. A well was dugin
1 1950, Tn 1960 new carpet was installed in the
sanctuary. All church windows were replaced.
Grounds were landscaped in 1961 and a new roof
was put omin 1963, Two restrooms and a kitchen
were added to the educational complex in 1967,

Records show that chaweh finances were in

good order. In 1965, pulpwood was scld .Erem
§ church lands and rccexpts were depo:uted to fﬂé
 building fund. R

s
Photo by Nichels Stadio

A new organ was pirchased in 1970, and paid for with memorial donations.

, Changes took niace in Beaver Creek's history when the Reverend Joseph E. Walker became pastor in 1971, Beaver
Creek and Blackstock Chvrches bought land between the two and built a new parsonage at a cost of $30,373 with each
church paying balf. el

In 1977-78, Beaver Creek Church added a new puipit, baptistry and choir Ioft behind the pwlplt. The sanctlmry was
© freshly pamtecL New pews, pulpit furnitnre and communion table, carpet, and central heat and air were installed. New e
hymnals were purchased. In 1979 the chrrch end educational building were bricked.. New chandeliers were instalied in
1983, and were paid for with memorial donations.
T, 1980, 92 acres of the church's property were cleared and pine seedlings planted. Pulpwood was sold and $8,100
. came to the church from 2 conservation program fhrough the Federal Agnculmral Stabilization and Congervation Agency.
Also in 1980, Beaver Creek received a certificate of recognition for being in the top ten churches in Scuth Carclina
in per capita giving to Annie Armstrong Faster offenng for Home Missioms. The chusch also gave generously to Hugo
Storm Fund in 1989.
o Reverend Walker served Beaver Creek and Blackstock for twelve years and proved himself an effective pastor as
well as an cutstanding spiritual leader. He wrote:
"The idea of laying remodeling hands upon so much history was not weil rece;ved at the
beginning, but this work set the tone and tempo for the third century of the congregation's existence. *

In 1983, Beaver Creek stood alone after Blackstock Church withdrew from the field. The Reverend Clyde L. Riley
became pasior that year. The congregation acccpted an offer from Blackstock to purchse Beaver Creek’s half-interest in the
pastorium.

: Miss Mattie Stone Day was observed by the Beaver Creek corhgmgauon in 1983. She was honored for hier
consecrated services as d1recter of Baptist Young Peopies Union (BYPU) smcc 1936 and as Sunday School teacher and/or
superintendent since 1941, -

In 1985 thc charch roof was replaced msludma rafters, shcaﬂlmg ‘and shmgies

In 1985, Miss Florida Durham Day honored her forher many Services and contributions to Beavcr Creek in the
executive, membership, history and property commiitees as Well a8 vhér-strong: support of missions.

In 1988, Beaver Creek obsérved Homecoming with a mortgage barning of all the chrirch's indebtedness. The
church has been debi-free since that time. N :

Tn 1989, 2 Steinway upright piano was donated toBeaver Creek Ciuzch. ., ‘

In 1990, a trost fund. of $50,000 was set up for Beaver Creck Chaurch. Other donatmms werga PICI}IC shelter that was

 erected behind the church, a bandsome display case and bookcase, handerafied and donated by the pastor of the church. In
1992, 200 shares of Duke Power Company common stock were donated to the chureh's cemetery fund.
Also in 1992, Mrs. Corinne R. (Cora) Weir on her 97th birthday was honored for teaching in Sanday Scheel for 73

years.



Several laymen were honored b},r Beaver C:reek’s congrcgaucﬁ. In 1993, John Dav1d Wm, Sr. was recoguized for
dedzcated service as both church treasurer and deacon since 1946, Jake F. Stone also received a plague for servmg as deacon.
since 1946, T 1997, Robert S. Banks was prescnwd a plaqns for service as Sunday School secretary and deacon since 1956.

Church records bear names of veterans serving in the Umnited States Armed Forces from Beaver Creek:

Korean War: Billy Banks, Fllioti McDonald, Edward Mormison, Kirk Roberts and Walker C. Taylor, Jr.

Vietnam War: Robert S. Banks, III, Claude W. Gwin, Jr., Joln E. Roberts IIT, and W. Douglas Steppe, Jr.

Deesert Storm:  John E. Reberts I and Jake F. Stone, Jr.

Reverend Riley served Beaver Creck as pastor until 1994. He was an Army veteran of World War II and a leader of
Crusade of America im Canada, sponsored by the Bapust Home Mission Board, 2nd of Crusade in Japan sponsored ”by
Foreign Mission Board.. He retired from ministry in 1994 from Beaver Creek Church.

Beaver Creek has continued to gain wide recogrition for its gifts to missions. In 1993, itreceived a certificate of
recogpition for top ten in per capita giving within the S.C. State Convention for gifis to Annie Armstrong Faster Cifering for
Home Missions...In 1994 and 1995 it received certificates of appreciation from the Foreign Mission Board for exemplary -
giving to the Lottie Moon Christmas Offering placing it as one of South Carolina's top 25 churches in per capita doilars

given.

A certificate in 1995 from the Foreign Nﬁssmn Board recognized Beaver Creek "for services rendered in the caﬁse
of Christ and Southern Baptists in World Missions. "

Also’in 1993, Beaver Creek was honored by South Carolina Baptlst Convenuon for ranlcmg among top 50 chm‘ches
in resident member per capita gifts to Janie Chapman Offenng

Beaver Creek Church continues devoted and meticulous care of the building, grounds and cemetery of its 200-year-
old church. In 1596, cushions were placed in the pews, new carpet was installed, inside walls were painted, a chandelier was
installed over the choir loft, pulpit farniture was recovered, and a new baplisiry curtain was added. The antique pulpit
furniture was refurbished. An easy-access ramp for the handicapped was placed on the right front of the church in 1997,

The Rev. Terry Wingate became Beaver Creck Church's pastor after Rev. Riley retired in 1994. Rev. Wingate is : bi-
vocational, working as a paramedic at Pledmont Medical Center in Rock Hill, 5.C.

Plans ave well naderway for the observance of Beaver Creek Clrurch's 200th anniversary on August 3, 1997

This hallowed rural church steadily maintains its worship, work, outreach and dedication. Iis beneficient infinence
spans many generations, and has been the lodestone of comtless families. To those members who remain in thc ‘pews each
Sunday, and to those who have emigrated far and wide, the ties to Beaver Creck Church remain lasting and sttong. Love
gifis fo the church come often, from many persons whose lives have been blessed by their 'litfle church in the vale."

This holy church of God appears
Through every age and race,
Unwasted by the lapse of years,
Unchanged by changing place
- Samuel Longfeliow
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CHURCH OFFICERS

Deacons 1947-1997

Samuel H. Banks
C. M. Bavks

W. C. Tayior, Sr.
Leshe B. Weir
Jake F. Stone
John D. Weir

1913-Dieqd 15966
1942 Died 1964
1944-Died 1973
1946-Died 1950
1945-1997
1946-1597

Charles McHenry Banks  1948-1586 moved church letter

Robert 8. Banks, St
Waiker C. Taylor, Jr.
Walier Widener

Thomas Elliott McDonald

Thomas Kell Reid
Wallace H. Banks
Robert G. Sterling
Fimmy Huey
Charles Dickey
Robert 5. Banks, Jr.
William: Propst
Jimmy Lewis

John E Robests, Jr.
Curtis Bonlware
Masion Craig

1956-1997
195%-Died 1591
1959-Died 1586
19551947
1964-1997
1965-Died 1975

1965-1968 moved church letier

1979-1997
1981-Died 1991
1982-1997
1983-Died 1996
1983-1997
1985-Died 1594
1987-1996

", 19901991 - moved

- Junior Pescon

Edward Mozrison

John D. Weir
‘Walace T, Banks
Joon D). Weir

1065-1967 - moved

1947-1970
1970-1974 (Died '75)
19741997

Miss Marede Durham

Clerk

Mrs. Lavinia W. MeDounald

1525-Died 1961

1961-1997

Senday School Superintendent

Watlace H. Banls

Charles McHenry Banks

Mrs. Sarah G. Banks

Charles McHenry Banks ~

T. Kelt Reid
Charles Dickey

Charles McHenny, Banks

Mrs. Sarak G Banks
Charles Dickey

Mrs. Sarah G. Banks
Jizrmy Huey

1960-1961
1961-1963
1963-1960
1969-1978
1978-1576
1979-1980
1980-1984
1984-1986
1986-1951
1991-1995
1995-1857 .

Suiday School Sceretary

Robert 8. Banks, Sr. 1956-1997
. Pianist snd/or Organist
“Miss Nettie Lee Banks 1946-1549
Miss Mary Agnes Banis 1949-1960
Miss Judith Reid 1960-1951
Miss Patsy Stepp 1961-1562
Miss Dianne Banks 1962-1968
- Wiss Margie Banks . -38968-1972
Mirs. Dianne Banks Huey S1972-1997
MEs. Vera Riley ‘_.‘1.‘_'983-1994




